WILTON MANORS HISTORICAL SOCIETY

“Covenant Presbyterian-Wilton Manors first church”

by Ron Ulm
August 2024

MINI-ARCHIVE RACAGROUND NOTES

This mini-archive compilation consists of the following:

. These background notes

. The Fall 2024 Town Crier article providing an “executive summary” of the history of Covenant
Presbyterian — Wilton Manors first church; which will be expanded upon in the “-Historical Notes-“below.

. A scrapbook dedicated to the 50th Anniversary of the Covenant Presbyterian Church, and a file folder
of loose material labeled “Photographs”

In 2012, the originals were loaned to the Wilton Manors Historical Society for digitizing by then-Deacon
John Blandin of New Presbyterian Church; then returned to New Presbyterian.

It includes a variety of materials; photographs, newspaper clippings, worship service programs, financial
statements, etc. The content is as-scanned, uncurated, and may not be in chronological or logical order.

. Selected photographs and newspaper articles about the church and related activities from the collection
of Jean French, ca 1948-1960

These were digitized from originals in the collection of the Wilton Manors Historical Society. A number of
these items are duplicates of material in the 50th Anniversary scrapbook. Jean and Ed French were charter
and long-time members of the congregation.

. Other more recently acquired and/or edited documents or photographs
-Historical Notes-

In 1948 Ann Wilmarth, director of Christian education at Bethany Presbyterian Church in downtown Fort
Lauderdale, was sent to canvas the Wilton Manors/Highland Estates area with an eye to establishing a community-
based, non-sectarian ministry for the burgeoning post-war families moving to that area.

That same year the first worship services of the new Wilton Manors/Highland Estates Community Church were
held at the Highland Estates Community House (located a few blocks from now-Island City Park Preserve). There
were thirty-three original charter members. It was the first recognized ministry in Wilton Manors, predating
Wilton Manors Baptist Church, which began in 1954, and First Christian Church in 1955. [Sidenote: there was a
Sunday School ministry that met at the Colohatchee Womans Club beginning in 1919, served by the Ft. Lauderdale
Presbyterian Church.]

[Highland Estates was a subdivision north of NE 26™ Street. It was governed by a quasi-municipal Civic Club, based
at their Community House meeting hall. They had a functioning water distribution system, with water from
Oakland Park and a fire department—neither of which Wilton Manors could offer. To preserve their autonomy,
they declined to join Wilton Manors when Wilton Manors was incorporated as a Village in 1947. They were
eventually annexed by Wilton Manors in 1951.]

A vyear later, in 1949, the Wilton Manors/Highland Estates Community Church was officially recognized as
Covenant Presbyterian Church; and members began planning a permanent multi-structure church campus. It
began with Mayor Dave Turner donating the land for the project--adjacent to the site of the Wilton Manors Village
Hall. [His relationship to the church is unclear ... he was later known to be a member of First Christian Church.]
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The first structure constructed on the site was the modest Chapel building. It was to seat 200. A newspaper
article in July 1950 announced the first worship services to be held in the not-yet-complete Chapel. It had been
under construction for about a year. It was built by the men of the congregation and funded through donations.
(See the Building Permit in the scrapbook with the “Contractor” listed as “Owner”.)

With continued growth, a one-story Sunday School building (now Fellowship Hall) was added in 1951. (The second
floor was added around 1955.)

There was a commitment from the congregation that “No indebtedness [will be] made. Construction will advance
as funds become available.”. With that restriction, and the continuing use of volunteer labor, it took until 1958
for the main 500-seat auditorium/Sanctuary building to be completed.

But, as with many of Wilton Manors pioneer religious and civic organizations, over-time Covenant Presbyterian’s
membership and funding declined. Around 2012 its Trustees determined that the ministry was no longer viable
and decided to disband the congregation. The membership agreed they would donate the church campus to a
local ministry that was either without a permanent home or that would continue to use it as a house-of-worship.
They solicited proposals and New Presbyterian Church was selected.

[New Presbyterian Church was formed in 2009 by a large group of dissident members who left Coral Ridge
Presbyterian Church in response to theological/philosophical differences with the new pastor chosen to replace
the iconic Dr. James Kennedy--who founded that church in 1960. Their worship and musical ministry services
were held at Pompano Beach High School until they moved to the Wilton Manors campus.]

It took New Presbyterian several years to refurbish/remodel the campus to meet their needs. That effort was
begun by then-Deacon John Blandin, a former contractor and municipal building inspector. One of his first
projects was to refurbish the Chapel building, at the same time restoring it its original 1950-look.

Among other things, that included removing a modern drop ceiling and restoring the elaborate, handcrafted
beam ceiling and chandeliers—as shown in photos at the end of this compilation. As of this writing,
the Chapel looks much as it did in 1950 (but for changes required by code and hurricane protection
requirements). Not only were the ceiling and chandeliers restored, but also the original terrazzo floors and
the chancel area. (WMHS commends New Presbyterian's historic restoration and preservation efforts!)

The restored Chapel was used for smaller events as early as 2012. The main worship and musical ministry services
continued to be held at Pompano Beach High School until completion of the refurbishing/remodeling of the rest
of the campus buildings. That was several years later. The first worship and musical ministry services in the main
auditorium/Sanctuary of New Presbyterian were held in February of 2016.

Our thanks to then-Deacon Blandin, without whose outreach to us in 2021 regarding the 50" Anniversary
Scrapbook, it would not be preserved/archived and made available for your and future generations enjoyment
and research.

Also, thanks to former Deacon Blandin and New Presbyterian Staff, who in July 2024 provided a tour of the
Chapel, as well additional information incorporated into the above Historical Notes.

Should you have any questions, comments or documents you would like to have added to this archive,

please contact us at wmhs@wmhistory.org.
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Fall 2024 City of Wilton Manors Town Crier newsletter
article--providing an “executive summary” and photos of
the history of Covenant Presbyterian Church
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A brief chronology of Wilton Manors first church - Covenant Presbyterian

It began as a non-sectarian, community-outreach ministry of Bethany Presbyterian Church—for the burgeoning post-war families
moving to Wilton Manors and Highland Estates. The first services were held in 1948 at the Highland Estates Community House (a few
blocks from now-ICPP). A year later the new ministry was officially recognized as Covenant Presbyterian Church; and members
began planning a permanent multi-structure church campus. Mayor Dave Turner donated the land; adjacent to the site of the Village
Hall. The Chapel building was completed in 1950—primarily through donations and volunteer labor. With continued growth, a Sun-
day School building (now Fellowship Hall) was added in 1951. It took until 1958 for the main Sanctuary building to be completed.

But over-time Covenant’s membership and funding declined. By 2012 its Trustees decided to disband the congregation. They offered
to donate the property to various local ministries that were without a permanent home. The New Presbyterian Church was selected.
It took New Presbytetian several yeats to trefurbish/remodel the campus to meet their needs. An eatly project was to return the Chap-
el to its original 1950-look. Among other things, this included removing a modern drop ceiling and restoring the elaborate, handcraft-
ed beam ceiling and chandeliers—as shown below. We commend
their historic restoration and presetrvation efforts!

For more history and images, download our Covenant Presbyteri-
an mini-archive at:: https://tinyutl.com/CovenantPres

Wilton Manors Historical Society ' comments? Email us at wnhs@WMHistory.otg



https://tinyurl.com/CovenantPres

Covenant Presbyterian Church 50th Anniversary Scrapbook

Digitized by WMHS, 2012, from original loaned by New
Presbyterian Church

Originals returned
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Lester Florrid R.J. McCann

CLERK OF SESSION

Bethany Presbyterian Church

CHURCH PHONE 800 SOUTH FEDERAL HIGHWAY MANSE PHONE

2979 110
Fort Lauderdale, Florida

| TR | [ p——— [‘ovc, Jr., Minister

December 2, 1948

Dear

On Thursday evening, December 9th, at 7:30
there will be a special meeting in the Highland Estates Com-~
munity House for the purpose of completing plans for the
organization of a Presbyterian Church in the Highland Estates
and Wilton Manor aree,

All who are interested in becoming charter
members of this Church, both adults and young people, are most
urgently requested to be present. Plans are being laid and
will be presented with regard to the future program of the
Church, There will be an election of officers and the Church
organization will be set up looking to a definite date for the
final charter to be presented by the Presbytery.

It is our prayer that the people of the com-
munity will give themselves to this all-important work, The
Bethany Church and the Presbytery begs their whole-hearted sup-
port in both financial and spiritual contributions. Please
make your plans now to be present and pray earnestly that God
will bless the work., If you are a Christian, you are eligible
to become a charter member of this work, regardless of past

v affiliations.

Yours in Christ!

Rev, H. Lawrence Love, Jr.

HLL:M
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Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text


Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Kip Adams, Dr. McClure, Bud Steggerda, Tom Cook
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Kip Adams, Dr. McClure, Bud Steggerda, Tom Cook

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text


Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-

1960


Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text
1960

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text


Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



Digital compilation and images ©Wilton Manors Historical Society
-permission/attribution required for reuse-



. Digital compi\ation and images @Wiltop Manors I—!\slorical Society
Note proposed sanctuary is perpendigularstowhatwas:finatlyobuilte-


Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text

Gateway 836GM
Typewritten Text
Note proposed sanctuary is perpendicular to what was finally built.
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Selected photographs and newspaper articles about the
church and related activities from the collection of Jean
French, ca 1948-1960
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1960(?)
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Jean French and other Covenant women
participate in civic/charitable activities.
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Other more recently acquired and/or edited documents or
photographs
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